
Vestavia Hills  
City Council Agenda 

August 24, 2015 
5:00 PM 

 

1. Call to Order  
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation – Taneisha Young Tucker, Library Director  
4. Pledge Of Allegiance   
5. Announcements and Guest Recognition 
6. Proclamation – Gynecological Cancer Awareness Month – September 2015 
7. City Manager’s Report 
8. Councilors’ Reports 
9. Financial Reports – Melvin Turner, III, Finance Director 
10. Approval of Minutes –August 10, 2015 (Regular Meeting)  

Old Business  

11. Resolution Number 4741 - A Resolution Accepting A Bid For Wildland Protection 
Equipment For The Vestavia Hills Fire Department  (Public Hearing) 

12. Ordinance Number 2583 – Rezoning – 2501 Dolly Ridge Road; Lot 31 And West 50’ Of 
Lot 29, Rocky Ridge Estates; Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-2 For 
Construction Of Two Homes; David Acton Building Corporation, Owners  (Public 
Hearing) 

13. Ordinance Number 2582 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2501 Dolly Ridge Road; Lot 31 
And West 50’ Of Lot 29, Rocky Ridge Estates; David Acton Building Corporation, 
Owners  (Public Hearing) 

14. Ordinance Number 2585 – Rezoning – 4711 Caldwell Mill Road; Rezone From Jefferson 
County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1 For Construction Of Two Homes; David Acton 
Building Corporation, Owners (Public Hearing) 

15. Ordinance Number 2584 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 4711 Caldwell Mill Road; 
David Acton Building Corporation, Owners  (Public Hearing) 

16. Ordinance Number 2586 – Rezoning – A Portion Of 4308 Dolly Ridge Road; Rezone 
From Vestavia Hills R-4 To Vestavia Hills B-1.2; Fred Acton, Owner  (Public Hearing) 

 



New Business  

17. Resolution Number 4744 – A Resolution Approving An Alcohol License For S R 
Liquors LLC d/b/a Vestavia Package Store, Meesala Bhikshapathisriniv and Thota 
Ravikanth, Executive  (public hearing) 

18. Resolution Number 4745 – A Resolution Approving An Alcohol License For Bruner 
Holdings Inc., d/b/a Johnny Bruscos Pizza, William Bruner and Joshua Bruner, 
Executives  (public hearing) 

19. Resolution Number 4751 - A Resolution Approving The Final 10% Of The 2014-2015 
Fiscal Year Budget Of The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent)  

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

20. Resolution Number 4752 - A Resolution Authorizing A General Fund Budget, A Special 
Fund Budget And A Capital Fund Budget For The City For Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
(Public Hearing) 

21. Resolution Number 4746 – Annexation – 90-Day – 3527 Valley Circle; Lot 5, Block 1, 
Dolly Ridge Estates, Second Sector; Paul and Katie Harbinson, Owners  (public hearing) 

22. Ordinance Number 2587 – Annexation – Overnight – 3527 Valley Circle; Lot 5, Block 1, 
Dolly Ridge Estates, Second Sector; Paul and Katie Harbinson, Owners  (public hearing) 

23. Resolution Number 4747 – Annexation – 90-Day – 3579 Valley Circle; Lot 18, Block 1, 
Amended Map of Dolly Ridge Estates, Second Sector; P. David Deusner, Owner  (public 
hearing) 

24. Ordinance Number 2588 – Annexation – Overnight – 3579 Valley Circle; Lot 18, Block 
1, Amended Map of Dolly Ridge Estates, Second Sector; P. David Deusner, Owner  
(public hearing) 

25. Resolution Number 4748 – Annexation – 90-Day – 2720 Alta View Drive; Tony and 
Abbie Miller, Owners; Gene Gray, Representing  (public hearing) 

26. Ordinance Number 2589 – Annexation – Overnight – 2720 Alta View Drive; Tony and 
Abbie Miller, Owners; Gene Gray, Representing  (public hearing) 

27. Resolution Number 4749 – Annexation – 90-Day – 2615 Alta Vista Circle; Lot 6, 
Altadena Valley Country Club Sector; Bradley and Kelly Belew, Owners  (public 
hearing) 

28. Ordinance Number 2590 – Annexation – Overnight – 2615 Alta Vista Circle; Lot 6, 
Altadena Valley Country Club Sector; Bradley and Kelly Belew, Owners 



29. Resolution Number 4750 – Annexation – 90-Day – 4670 Caldwell Mill Road; Brooks 
and Elisabeth Souders, Owner  (public hearing) 

30. Ordinance Number 2591 – Annexation – Overnight – 4670 Caldwell Mill Road; Brooks 
and Elisabeth Souders, Owner  (public hearing) 

31. Ordinance Number 2592 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 74 +/- Acres Adjacent to the 
Cahaba River; Freshwater Land Trust, Owners  (public hearing) 

32. Ordinance Number 2593 – 2330, 2342 & 2412 Jacobs Road; Rezone From VH R-2 And 
JC R-1 To VH R-9; Anna Steel Properties; Jordy Henson, Representing  (public hearing) 

33. Ordinance Number 2594 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2330 Jacobs Road; Anna Steele 
Properties, Jordy Henson, Representing  (public hearing) 

34. Citizens Comments  
35. Executive Session 
36. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 
 August 10, 2015 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

AUGUST 10, 2015 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 5:00 PM.  
The Mayor called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the 
following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 
George Pierce  

      John Henley  
      Jim Sharp 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 
      Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
      George Sawaya, Deputy Treasurer 
      Danny Rary, Police Chief 
      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
      Marvin Greene, Asst. Fire Chief 
      Terry Ray, Asst. Fire Chief 
      Scott Key, Fire Marshal 
      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
 
 
 Invocation was given by Melvin Turner III, Finance Director.   
 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 
 The Mayor presented a proclamation designating August 21, 2015 as National 
Senior Citizen’s Day.  Mr. Downes read the proclamation and presented it to Joyce 
Dawkins, Jason Burnett and Julie Harper.  Mr. Burnett invited everyone to the celebration 
beginning at 4 PM on Friday, August 21, 2015 at the New Merkle House. 
 
 
 

 



City Council Minutes 
 August 10, 2015 

Page 2 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION, CANDIDATES 
 

• No Announcements. 
 
 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 

• Mr. Downes gave an update on the following: 
o Cahaba Heights roadway project which is 2 weeks behind schedule 

because of unexpected weather and soil conditions.  This means the school 
opening will occur while the road is not finished but the City has been 
meeting with the Board of Education to ensure that safe access is given up 
until the time the roadway is completed. 

o Sicard Hollow paving project is moving forward with the County taking 
the lead on RFP for the project. 

o The request for rezoning of the Altadena Valley Country Club is being 
presented to the Planning and Zoning Commission.  Staff has met with 
multiple groups representing various neighborhoods trying to address 
concerns.  Traffic is the most concerning and the traffic engineer’s study 
has been received and there has also appears to be study toward a possible 
alternate access.  This was just discovered and is being studied as quickly 
as possible but it involves many parties and cannot be completed before 
the Commission meeting. 

o A review of the July financial reports show a marked increase in building 
permit revenues which is encouraging toward new construction growth in 
the City. 

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

• Mr. Henley reminded everyone of Institutional Day at Mountaintop Church.  All 
teachers and students will be returning to school Thursday and warned everyone 
to drive carefully in the traffic. 

• The Mayor asked everyone to remember the Humphries family in their thoughts 
and prayers after the loss of their house in a tremendous fire this week. 

• The Mayor stated that Vestavia Hills was mentioned in AL.com as the most 
educated City in Alabama (28th in the USA) and the safest City in Alabama (6th in 
the nation). 

 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of July 16, 2015 (Work Session) and July 27, 2015 (Regular 
Meeting) were presented for approval.   
 



City Council Minutes 
 August 10, 2015 

Page 3 
 

MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of July 16, 2015 (Work 
Session) and July 27, 2015 (Regular Meeting) and approve them as 
presented was by Mr. Pierce and second by Mr. Henley.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2578 
 
Ordinance Number 2578 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2437 Rocky Ridge Road; 

Lot 1, Buckhead 1st Sector; Michael And Caroline Allen, Owners  
(public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2578 was by Mr. Pierce and second 

was by Mr. Henley. 
 
 Mr. Pierce explained that the Annexation Committee reviewed this request and 
found no problems.  The property was annexed overnight a few months ago and this is 
the 90-day final. 
 
 Mr. and Mrs. Michael Allen were present in regard to the request. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 
question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2579 
 
Ordinance Number 2579 – Rezoning – 2437 Rocky Ridge Road; Lot 1, Buckhead 1st 

Sector; Rezone From JC E-2 To VH R-1; Compatible Zoning For 
Annexation; Michael And Carolyn Allen, Owners  (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2579 was by Mr. Pierce and second 

was by Mr. Sharp. 
 
 The Mayor indicated this is the compatible zoning of the same property. 



City Council Minutes 
 August 10, 2015 

Page 4 
 

 
 Mr. and Mrs. Michael Allen were present in regard to the request. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 
question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2580 
 
Ordinance Number 2580 – Annexation – 3609 Settlers Lane; Part of Estate #6, JP 

Westbrook Estates; Joseph D. West, Owner  (public hearing) 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2580 was by Mr. Pierce and second 

was by Mr. Henley. 
 
 Mr. Pierce explained that the Annexation Committee reviewed this request and 
found no problems.  The property was annexed overnight a few months ago and this is 
the 90-day final. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 
question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2581 
 
Ordinance Number 2581 – Rezoning – 3609 Settlers Lane; Part of Estate #6, JP 

Westbrook Estates; Rezone From JC E-1 To VH E-2; Compatible 
Zoning For Annexation; Joseph D. West, Owner  (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2581 was by Mr. Sharp and second 

was by Mr. Pierce. 
 
 The Mayor indicated this is the compatible zoning of the same property. 
 



City Council Minutes 
 August 10, 2015 

Page 5 
 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 
question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS  
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4743 
 
Resolution Number 4743 – A Resolution Approving An Alcohol License For 

Samurai Japan LLC, Samurai Japan Restaurant, 700 Montgomery 
Highway, Suite 178; Bin Bin Chen, Executive  (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4743 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Ammons. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this is a request for restaurant retail liquor for the new 
Japanese restaurant at the City Center. 
 
 Chief Rary stated the Police Department has no objections to the request. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked about employee training on alcohol sales. 
 
 Bin Bin Chen was present in regard to the request and indicated that she 
participates in ABC’s training for her employees. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 
question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4740 
 
Resolution Number 4740 - A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager 

To Execute And Deliver An Agreement With Jefferson County For 



City Council Minutes 
 August 10, 2015 

Page 6 
 

Sanitary Sewer Repairs Within ALDOT Right-Of-Way At The New 
City Hall 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4740 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this is an agreement with Jefferson County for sewer 
repairs in ALDOT right-of-way.  He explained the terms of the agreement and the need 
for the sewer work to be completed in time for the City to move into the new City Hall. 
 
 Mr. Boone stated that he did a review of the agreement and recommended the 
Resolution that he drafted and the agreements and exhibits attached. 
 
 The Mayor stated that the Council needed to do an amendment to incorporate Mr. 
Boone’s newly drafted ordinance to replace the one in the packet complete with the 
exhibits. 
 
MOTION Motion to amend Resolution Number 4740 to replace Mr. Boone’s 

Resolution with the one in the agenda packet complete with exhibits was 
made by Mr. Ammons.  Mr. Henley seconded the motion.  Roll call vote 
as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing. 
 
 Donald Harwell, 1457 Willoughby Road, asked if the repairs in the ROW would 
tear up new asphalt. 
 
 Mr. Brady stated the repair area is on the shoulder of the highway and shouldn’t 
affect the newly paved portion of roadway. 
 
 There being no further discussion, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called 
for the question.  Roll call vote as follows. 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4742 
 
Resolution 4742 - Appointing Kym Prewitt To Fill The Unexpired Term Of Rebecca 

Walden On The Vestavia Hills Library Board 
 



City Council Minutes 
 August 10, 2015 

Page 7 
 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4742 was by Mr. Henley and 
second was by Mr. Ammons. 

 
 The Mayor stated that Rebecca Walden recently moved out of the City and 
resigned her appointment on the Vestavia Hills Library Board.  He stated that this Board 
does good work for the Library and is a prestigious Board but it’s always difficult to 
encourage individuals to apply to serve on it.  Ms. Prewitt recently rolled off of the Board 
of Education and was interested in serving on another Board but not as an officer.  He 
indicated that she was very interested in finishing this appointment. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing. 
 
 Lisa Christopher, 2412 Mountain Vista Drive, commended the Mayor on the 
selection and stated that Ms. Prewitt is very well qualified for this appointment and will 
do good things for the Board. 
 
 There being no one else to address the Council regarding this request, the Mayor 
closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll Call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor stated that the following Resolutions and/or Ordinances will be 
presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting on 
August 24, 2015 at 5 PM. 

• Resolution Number 4741 - A Resolution accepting a bid for Wildland Protection 
Equipment for the Vestavia Hills Fire Department  (public hearing) 

• Ordinance Number 2582 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2501 Dolly Ridge Road; 
Lot 31 And West 50’ Of Lot 29, Rocky Ridge Estates; David Acton Building 
Corporation, Owners  (Public Hearing) 

• Ordinance Number 2583 – Rezoning – 2501 Dolly Ridge Road; Lot 31 And West 
50’ Of Lot 29, Rocky Ridge Estates; Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-2 
For Construction Of Two Homes; David Acton Building Corporation, Owners  
(Public Hearing) 

• Ordinance Number 2584 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 4711 Caldwell Mill 
Road; David Acton Building Corporation, Owners  (Public Hearing) 

• Ordinance Number 2585 – Rezoning – 4711 Caldwell Mill Road; Rezone From 
Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1 For Construction Of Two Homes; 
David Acton Building Corporation, Owners (Public Hearing) 

• Ordinance Number 2586 – Rezoning – A Portion Of 4308 Dolly Ridge Road; 
Rezone From Vestavia Hills R-4 To Vestavia Hills B-1.2; Fred Acton, Owner  
(Public Hearing) 



City Council Minutes 
 August 10, 2015 

Page 8 
 

 
CITIZENS COMMENTS 

 
 David Harwell, 1803 Catala Road, thanked the Council for finally getting 
ALDOT to complete the Montgomery Highway paving project.  He stated that the paving 
looks good and it appears the loops have all been repaired and time correctly. 
 
MOTION Motion to adjourn was by Mr. Pierce and second was by Mr. Henley.  

Meeting adjourned at 5:50 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number 4741 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4741 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A BID FOR WILDLAND PROTECTION 
EQUIPMENT FOR THE VESTAVIA HILLS FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 
 WHEREAS, on August 5, 2015 at 10:00 a.m. the City of Vestavia Hills publicly read 

aloud bids submitted for Wildland Protection Equipment for the Vestavia Hills Fire Department; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Fire Chief has reviewed the bids, detailed them in an Interoffice 

Memorandum dated August 5, 2015 and recommended acceptance of the bid submitted by 

NAFECO; a copy of said Interoffice Memorandum is marked as Exhibit A attached to and 

incorporated into this Resolution Number 4741 as if written fully therein; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to follow the 

recommendation of the Fire Chief and accept said bid as detailed above. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The bid submitted NAFECO as detailed in Exhibit A attached and recommended by the 

Fire Chief is hereby accepted; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4741 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 24th day of August, 2015. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor  
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



VOLENS ET POTENS 

 

VESTAVIA HILLS FIRE DEPARTMENT 

513 MONTGOMERY HIGHWAY 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 35216 

(205) 978-0225 

(205) 978-0205 (FAX) 

 

 

JAMES R. ST. JOHN 

FIRE CHIEF 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

 

 

TO:  Jeff Downes, City Manager   

 

FROM:  Jim St. John, Fire Chief 

 

DATE:  August 5, 2015 

 

RE:  Wildland Protective Equipment Bid 

 

Invitations to bid for Fire Department wildland protective equipment were sent to 6 vendors.   

 

Sunbelt Fire, Inc responded with a “No Bid”. 

 

Emergency Equipment Professionals submitted a partial bid of $58,369.60.  This bid did not 

include much of the equipment to be purchased. 

 

Municipal Emergency Services, Inc. submitted a bid of $155,509.01 with 7 exceptions. 

 

NAFECO submitted a bid of $153,352.00 and took no exceptions. 

 

Grainger attempted to deliver a bid package at 10:09 am, which was after the bid opening. 

 

I recommend that NAFECO’s bid be accepted.  This purchase will be funded by the FY 2015 

Assistance to Firefighters Act grant, with federal reimbursement of 90% of the cost.  The 10% 

matching funds will be paid from the Fire Department’s General Fund. 

 

 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4741



Ordinance Number 2583 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2583 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY E-2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-2. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-2 (estate 

residential) Vestavia Hills R-2 (residential district):  

2501 Dolly Ridge Road 
Lot 31 and West 50’ of Lot 29, Rocky Ridge Estates 

David Acton Building Corp. 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 24th day of August 2015. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2583 
Page 2 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2583 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 24th day of August, 2015 as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



 
 

Ordiinance Number
P
r 2583 
Page 3 

 

 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     JULY 9, 2015 
 

• CASE:  P-0715-38 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-2  
 
• ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2501 Dolly Ridge Rd. 

 
• APPLICANT/OWNER: David Acton Building Corp. 

 
• REPRESNTING AGENT: Jordan Huffstetler 

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property is on the corner of Dolly Ridge Rd. and Ridge 

Dale Dr., adjacent to Rocky Ridge Rd. Property began the 90 day annexation process 
by City Council with the intention of building two lots with the passage of Resolution 
4711 on 5/11/15. A proposed site plan is attached. The lots meet the minimum 
requirements for an R-2 zone. Once annexed and rezoned the applicant will return 
with the final plat. 

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The request is consistent with 

the Comprehensive Plan for medium density residential. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and have no issues 
with this request. 

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 
4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 



 2 

MOTION  Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend approval of Rezoning of for 2501 
Dolly Ridge Rd. from Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-2 For The Purposes Of 
Annexation and Two New Residential Lots. Second was by Mr. Burrell. Motion was carried on 
a roll call; vote as follows: 

 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Sharp – yes          
Mr. Wolfe – yes   Mr. House – yes     
Mr. Brooks – yes    Mr. Visintainer – yes     
Motion carried. 

 
 



0
.1

3
. 

/o
P

aa
n

c.
 

(v
m

o
vw

 3
0

 3
M

S
 

01
01

0,
1 

.1
61

2 
.•

 
14

..0
0 

O
W

V
A

 C
I)  

0
..
0
 4

. 

a
tr

Y
3

.0
7

0
:.

, 
le

r0
 	

0
1
0
.0

1
3
3
0
.7

.0
1
 

■1
7
0
1
.1

■0
11

01
.1 

M
O

M
 n

o
 

1.
0.

61
1  

1
 

a
le

 7
0

 
T

V
/4

7
9
1
.0

0
1
 

O
rg

..
 i
1
0
.1

.1
 

.0
1

,1
0
n
 0

3
..
1
4
1
1
1
,0

0
 

11
.1

31
.1

3.
11

1,
1•

3 
0
1
0
. 
K

2
 

IN
x
A

V
ir
i 

0
/.
7
0
.1

1
0
. 

,a
h 

S
o

ti
fe

l 
- 

1
1
0
1
M

,1
1
3
4

■7
0
 A

IM
S

 0
0

. 
1.

0.
/1

1 

31
0X

V
 H

01
.1

.3
1.

10
 

TI
E

N
IS

V
11

:1
0  

a
 

¢
9
3
1
0
0
3
.0

1
, 

1
3
3
.1

W
. 
1
1
0
6
 

	
 
—

  w
irm

aa
vo

n 

1
1
 O

S
 5

E
5
0
'6

5
 

V
 L

E
 1

0
1
 

SV
01

:1
1.

 
,

ea
s. 	

3
1

1
9

 

qv
 

1
1
 0

S
0
5
9
6
1

,5
 

8 
LC

 1
01

 
Z

E
 1

0
1

 

Y
 

N
a

d
0

 i
d

l 

LE
 1

01
  -

-
-
-
-
-
-
 

X
1

0
, 

d
o

 ~
1

5
d

M
3

N
1

,~
3

a
 

5
. 4

 
3
' 	

.9
3

1
4

 

N
d

l 

4
7

.0
.6

(1
. 

81
10

1.
 	 

W
E

N
 s

k
i 

9
5
 /
0
1
 

0
0

1
0

1
 

cr
I7

11
3.

01
00

b
10

 M
O

M
 M

I 
T

IV
3

6
 0

1
1

0
. 

d
V

II
A

J
J
O

IN
IA

 

1 

a
il

s 7
/
  
M

t
  a

ra
.  A

i 

6
3

3
(b

M
,»

N
1

C
1

d
1

M
3

.M
9

3
3

0
0

1
1

4
.0

0
E

IV
J
N

I1
0

0
 N

O
6

8
3

3
4

3
R

P
S

IA
1

0
1

F
1

8
..

. 

5
1

0
,0

1
5

 a
fi
a

 •
A

S
 0

.7
3

H
D

 e
ar

o 
s
a
s
n

. 
S

LO
E

da
 

p
o

n
 N

u
n

 *
M

a
%

 M
a
n

ta
p

u
n

e
g

y
a
n

u
m

 
w

p 
R

u
m

p
 a

n
 	

ne
ap

 a
m

p 
m

y
. 

a
m

 a
y

 	
ya

p 	
m

g
r.

 

'O
N

O
 5

.3
0

.1
. 

D
t0

7
.0

.1
1

.1
3

1
 

S
W

IM
S

 I
V

IM
IN

D
M

3
 P

O
 .
0
1
.3

-3
.1

0
 

7
0

.3
 

a
a

 M
a

t 
1

5
.1

.N
.A

0
u

n
k

.0
0

 

*
a

 p
.p

. 
0

.4
 w

p
m

 

3
.0

 	
.1

0
0

.6
1

1
, 

.
.
0
 

V
an

  a
l 

M
a

n
n

 a
la

 
im

o
n

y
la

 
1
9
0
9
0
 *

1
 

o
m

e
n

..
 

M
IT

IT
Y

 A
O

 a
lv

la
 

.0
1

9
6

1
1

1
.0

0
 O

N
Y

N
O

Z
, 

O
H

M
, 

B
II

IN
 v

N
V

1
8

3
.1

 n
iv

o
n

am
o

 

n
IM

IO
K

0
A

1
1

0
 

71
1.

11
0.

1 
u

o
m

u
tu

to
 

.1
04

14
02

.1
 

41
3/

10
11

.1
Y

 

•
  p  

am
p 
 w

e
e
 v

. 

.
0
 
.
.
.
a
y
.
 

P
.M

P
A

S
M

  %
m

a
 a

..
 M

a
p

 
a

n
n

a
lm

. 

M
N

 
 N

 	
N

. 

AO
 

-
-
-

M
7
3
F

U
R

N
.M

1
1
1
0
1
5
6
7
1
.1

1
1
 

8
S

ti
L

0
 5

1
 .
+

If
 

Mf
 

m
an

 

on
■
L

O
W

IP
 W

S
 N

I 
4
.0

..
C

.A
.B

.k
il
. 

..
..
..
..
.m

u
s
p

a
a
s
e
 

v
e
m

e
s
.q

p
.P

ro
 

M
M

..
 A

lp
 

6,
..
0
 

M
O

1
 
*
M

M
.
  P

an
an

a 
 .
1
1
2
/V

II
S

3
M

1
.1

7
0
6
1
/M

a
m

..
11

1
M

p
la

a
m

 
 M

w
M

 
M

o
ll
a
p

p
r
a
lm

ia
p

lm
..
.m

im
a
s
p

 a
m

y
lp

..
.m

p
o

w
a
la

m
M

p
a
s
 

W
a

rp
  
o

l
  
e

a
r
l
.
.
1

1
0

.
1

.
0

1
M

1
1

0
0

0
M

.
 

10
1
5

.
.
.
m

a an
q

 
.
 

 
1

0
1

  A
o
a
N

IS
M

A
IM

M
 M

O
M

M
 

 
p

.
. u
4

0
.
,
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
m

.
.
  m

y
 .
 •

  M n
1

.1
  
.
  

1
/.
.l
a
.M

M
a
a
y
 p

a
 

.
n

a
d

w
.
.
.

4.
1
.
.
e
l
w

o
 
'
e
n

 
E

m
p

 
,
 
p

e
 	

P
A

0
0,

 

 

 a
m

 i
m

p
 M

..
=

 a
, 

A
O

 4
iN

n
o
o
 

V
IV

V
(I

Y
IV

. 
3

.1
5

 

	

5
.1

0
1

0
.1

0
1

1
A

 1
0

1
V

 1
0

 1
2

1
7

0
1

 O
W

 1
0

1
7

 M
A

IO
 0

1
5
1
 .
..

O
S

. 
B

M
/ 

1
0

 	
3

1
, 

3
1

0
M

 

N
ou

po
ol

oo
r 	

4
0
.1

 

s
le

r
n

 0
. 1

.1
.Y

0
 	

S
. 
a
l 
"
T

M
 

19
 	

UC
 

4
1

0
3

 0
1,
0
0
1
.N

0
1
3
7
 M

A
Y

O
 

IM
M

O
 

11
01

10
-.

1
1

 1
0

0
ti 

S
V

IO
t 
V

Ir
o

lv
7
/ 
4
1
..
.0

.1
1
1
1
1
1
 

▪ 
3

1
1

1
1

6
 .

tl
e

 A
rr

ro
n

 	
E

T
U

 

'
91

'9
9
0
1
1
9
1
0
$
 o

N
u
an

an
s 

.
  
0
3
1
f.
3
.1

 

A
.m

n
o
o
 N

o
..
° 

a
r 

1
0

3
0

1
i 
3

0
.1

1
,U

n
O

t 
6

4
.4

1
1

.1
.0

1
 I

t 
M

O
B

S
 

P
.L

9
7

3
1

.1
1

1
1

0
5

.1
.0

 0
3

1
7

1
1

1
.1

9
 

V
IW

F
IV

IV
 '
,M

O
D

 0
0

.1
.4

3
,1

0
 	

a
L
V

IP
.I
3
Il
l 

9
0

,1
 )

1
0

0
1

3
 .
7

1
N

I 
0

.1
0

.1
I 

S
31

V
1S

3 
3O

C
II

21
 A

)1
00

8 
6
Z

 1
0
1
 3

0
 1

3
3
3
 O

S
 1

S
3
A

A
 3

H
1
 

O
N

V
 6

E
 1

01
 J

O
 A

3A
21

11
S

32
1 

V
 



Figure 21: Rocky Ridge Road / Acton Road We ,r 
Land Use Analysis 

Neighborhood • primarily low medium density single-family residential 
areas with higher densities near village center(s).  Othse  uses may include 
schools, places of worship. recreational MU, and open space. 

Village Center - misted use centers oath highest densities in tear an-as. 
Mix of uses should include retail and terror businesses, professional offices, 
high density residential areas, inanronons. recreation areas, and public spaces. 

Commercial Core • primarily high derisory, retail and service Maine. 
areas with professional offices and multifamily residences on upper floors or 
on periphery. Other uses may include institutions and public space. 

O Gateways and Nodes • Gateways are entryways into the community or 
village enhanced with consistent signage, landscaping, and other elements. 
Nodes are sites, such as transit stops, where public spaces, signage. and other 
public design elements should he considered. 

109 	 Vestavia Hillr Comprehensive Plan 

ri Professional Offices • primarily professional ofttcc u,cs. livnory should 
  vary according to sunoundings. Other uses may include retail and services 

(supporting offices and employees), plants of wumlltp, pubic spaces, and open space. 

Recreation and Open Space - public and private recreation facilities and 
preserved natural spaces. gee/canon facilities may be acme, rassare or combined. Open 
spaces are are-as preserved in a natural state and may include passive recreational uses 

Trailheads - Trailheasis are public sites along a lead, where hike racks. searing, 
parking, and public amenities are provided for trail users. 

■ Schools • School facilitua administrated by the Vcatevia Hills School System. 

SOO 	0 
	

SOO 	WOO 1500 Ives 

Ll 

refol 

medium 
density 

residential gateway 

HOOVER rrailhem.I 

‘coti'€c9(  

ROC Y RIDGE 

Mixed U 

dire tional signs 

■  High School 

irrlc Shades 
Creek ['ark 

ACTON 
ROAD 

office uses 

t. 

Office uses 
VER 

medium densirN 

residential 



Ordinance Number 2582 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2582 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 11th day of May, 2015, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2501 Dolly Ridge Road 
Lot 31 and the West 50' of Lot 29, Rocky Ridge Estates (MB 28 MP 78) 

David Acton Building Building Corporation, Owner(s) 
 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2582 
Page 2 

 
 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 24th day of August, 2015. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2582 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 24th day of August, 2015, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 







































Ordinance Number 2585 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2585 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY E-2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-1. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-2 (estate 

residential) Vestavia Hills R-1 (residential district):  

4711 Caldwell Mill Road 
David Acton Building Corp. 

 
More Particularly Described as Follows: 
 

Part of the NE ¼ of the SW ¼ of Section 34, Township 18 South, Range 2 
West, more particularly described as follows: 
 
Begin at the SE corner of said 1/4-1/4 Section; thence North along the 
East line of said 1/4-1/4 Section 233.0 feet; thence 90 Degrees left 224.0 
feet; thence 90 degrees right 83.30 feet; thence 77 degrees 50 minutes left 
334.17 feet to a point on the east right-of-way of a County Road (Caldwell 
Mill Road) thence 85 degrees 35 minutes left along said right-of-way 
33.93 feet; thence 8 degrees 19 minutes left 191.5 feet; thence 92 degrees 
29 minutes left 139.75 feet; thence 88 degrees 29 minutes right 118.0 feet 
to a point on the South line of said 1/4-1/4 Section; thence 91 degrees, 08 
minutes, 44 seconds left along the South line of said 1/4-1/4 Section 
460.85 feet to the point of beginning. 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 24th day of August 2015. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2585 
Page 2 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2585 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 24th day of August, 2015 as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



 
 

Ordiinance Number
P
r 2585 
Page 3 

 

 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     JULY 9, 2015 
 

• CASE:  P-0715-37 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1 
 
• ADDRESS/LOCATION:  4711 Caldwell Mill Rd. 

 
• APPLICANT/OWNER: David Acton Building Corp. 

 
• REPRESNTING AGENT: Jordan Huffstetler 

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property is on the corner of Caldwell Mill Rd., adjacent 

to Camp Horner Rd. Property began the 90 day annexation process by City Council 
with the intention of building two lots with the passage of Resolution 4712 on 
5/11/15. A proposed site plan is attached. The lots meet the minimum requirements 
for an R-1 zone. Once annexed and rezoned the applicant will return with the final 
plat. 

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The request is consistent with 

the Comprehensive Plan for Neighborhood, low/medium density residential. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  Will meet onsite with developer for driveway 
permits 

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 
4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 



 2 

MOTION  Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend approval of Rezoning for 4711 
Caldwell Mill Rd. from Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1 For The Purposes Of 
Annexation and Two New Residential Lots. Second was by Mr. Brooks. Motion was carried on 
a roll call; vote as follows: 

 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Sharp – yes          
Mr. Wolfe – yes   Mr. House – yes     
Mr. Brooks – yes    Mr. Visintainer – yes     
Motion carried. 

 
 
 



OP
OL

OO
  T

O
 '

O
.  '

O
lo

P
p

P
u

tl
 P

p
  A

S 

A
P

O
 

P
A

N
 	

P
P

 P
P

 p
L

o
 p

ro
o
 O

p
 a

n
 p

o
o
p

 

1
.1

. 
P

o
 o

p
 P

i 
p

p
 

.1
1

.4
.1

..
..
.L

O
P

P
O

 *
M

S
 P

r
P

O
P

IP
. 
0

1
.P

 *
M

o
w

 M
o
o
 O

tw
o
o
p

 P
o
p

 M
O

N
 P

p
 o

w
l)

 .
4
1
 u

s 
P

o
e
.,
 *

*
m

o
p

. 

P
.4

Y
P

.I
 o

l  
M

. r
o

,P
o

o
P

. P
P

O
IM

O
P

II
 P

O
P

O
 P

.O
P

 	
W

e 
4.

41
1,

6f
li

v
a

.6
9
 e

ta
 c

o
 p

t"
. 
• 

O
P

P
 .
..
P

o
 	

P
M

 U
M

  P
o

w
 P

p
m

 R
o
o
 o

 '
P

o
m

o
 p

o
s
..

*
 o

 A
P

P
..

 •
 p

a
..

. 
0
.1

 

4o
 la

m
no

o 
W

O
O

O
V

IV
 1

,1
5
 

P
A

N
 	

6
61

6 6
11

1•
••

 

M
P

 
ue

  w
o
u
n
s 

p
a
1
•=

 i
o
 P

e
  u

 s
e 

A
IW

IM
 .

0
0
.4

.1
1
1
.1

.m
m

a
r 	

O
P

.
.
*

 	
•N

O
. 

0
..

0
0

.4
O

U
e

 M
4

  o
no

  M
u

, 
Ik

u
 e

x
p

a
 p

&
te

p
r
o

o
p

o
 %

w
o

o
l 

o
l 

O
o

t0
0

0
r
e
 P

o
r
 o

p
o

o
p

to
 6

4
0

.0
1

 e
y

: 
c
o

 o
o

a
q

o
 

o
p

 m
o

w
 p

o
o

p
 l

o
p

o
o

p
p

o
p

o
 o

n
o

 p
o

o
L

o
p

o
P

p
o

y
 o

p
 '

p
o

p
 o

l 
N

o
.0

 o
p
. 

O
o •
  o

 p
o
ld

 A
.1

. 
p
a
P

e
o
o
p
p
 

U
e-

aw
s 

to
 .k

ug
na

o 
tw

o
.V

 4
o
 3

1v
is

 

N
O

IS
IS

IO
W

IC
O

 O
P

P
IC

O
 O

N
N

N
V

IE
I 

S
T

V
O

I 
P

R
IM

P
 W

O
W

. 

V
ir

.1
0
X

3
 

O
ilO

O
O

O
PP

N
 

. ..
.o

"
a
b

o
a
o
le

tn
n

eW
IL

O
V

O
A

K
I 

PM
 0

1 
..
.P

P
P

  Y
N

 M
4
 W

o
w

p
 p

o
s
o
lo

p
0
0
0
 o

p
p

o
s
p

o
 p

 

g
m

..
.f

t
 O

M
 M

a
 0

..
P

6
0
0

.
00

lo
o
N

..
.1

, 	
P

 

P
IP

lo
o

p
A

u
 P

P
o

lO
n

o
 P

o
 a

s 
w

o
w

 o
p

 p
p

 O
P

..
 p

m
 p

o
la

r
 X

.1
1

 p
p

 a
g

o
m

o
 o

g
o

 
p

p
g
 	

p
u

 	
..

1
.1

1
1

■A
n

n
a
s 

M
u

m
 P

I 
I*

 

p
p

o
o
so

 m
o
o
s 

tw
o
 o

u
p

 o
v
a
p

p
 p

o
p

o
o
P

o
u

n
o
p

r
y
 1

,4
, 
P

E
P

P
Y

 I
.W

. 
2
.4

.1
1
'1

W
 1

1
1
 

W
.W

.I
IP

 L
o
P

r
o
p

o
o
p

0
0
0
0
d

 N
 0

1
0
1
1
0
Y

 p
 P

O
M

P
. 
M

o
p

. 
V

e
r
p

o
o
P

P
 o

P
O

O
 p

a
ll

o
u

••
o
to

 

1
1

..
0

1
1

.2
  l

o
o
m

 p
 P

U
P

 p
a
 	

',1
1
.1

.1
1
.1
.

1
.
4
.

0  
O

..
 S

M
. 

.0
0
1
1
0
0
4
. 

O
u

p
o
tO

r
p

o
w

n
o
 

lo
oL

P
O

P
oo

lo
 

 

N
P

 
R

.
  P

o
o
 W

o
o
l 

N
 t

o
o
,o

P
o
4
P

o
o
 *

P
IP

 o
p

P
oo

P
oo

l 
R

. W
O

O
 

o
p

la
a
p

p
p

ro
 M

 d
o
w

n
 1

1
P

 1
1
3
M

O
IV

O
 V

a
 S

L
IP

S
 3

 •
• 

o
.0

0
l 

P
oo

 o
P

oP
 m

oO
• 

ol
,M

P
 o

u
r 

M
o
n

a
 •

 •
 P

a
o
. 
P

P
 o

p
 P

P
 ,
P

o
n

o
 p

m
 1

.
6 .

.,
6

66
16

66
6

 l
o

 w
o

w
 p

o
p

 O
o

m
 P

 1
4

N
Y

A
w

w
 R

o
o

 

P
o

o
L

o
o

m
. 
P

o
o

 P
 O

P
P

 P
o

p
o

 e
1

. 
w

e
n

..
 s

pe
w

  ,c
am

  6
E 6

01
6  

V
V

. 
0

4
 M

a
p

 M
a

o
 *

m
y

 •
a

u
se

 

O
p

p
. 

p
p

, 
o

p
, 	

P
P

S
P

 
 a

u
tp

 o
u

r
 w

Y
e
o
o
0
 R

P
M

 P
IM

W
 P

O
O

O
P

m
P

o
n

O
L

I.
 

A
5
1
3
l6

 4
0
1
.1

X
1
0
0
 

V
IT

O
P

P
IO

 L
P

 W
O

. 

5
1
0
1
 O

L
P

 0
,4

1
1
3
O

p
ed

 O
N

O
 M

A
P

 O
L

 S
i 

A
O

O
P

O
S

 O
H

L
 L

O
 3

6
0
..
.1

7
3
1
0
.1

 

m
ou

.a
6m

in
r8

11
13

11
11

11
.1

12
1%

40
1.

1.
13

 

O
P

O
 *

M
O

M
 O

IL
V

O
 	

6
6
~

1
4

 
 

W
O

O
 c

om
ni

ns
 N

O
IL

3V
 M

V
O

 
p

O
ot

oi
0 

S
N

P
 L

a
o

 l
o

o
t 

M
S

T
 P

O
P

O
P

O
o 

W
oo

n
ol

N
es

if
 

n
 	

O
al

fr
O

n
 a

or
n

on
 Z

C
Z

O
 

'3
51

 v
m

o
u
n
lo

s 
a
g
b

,1
3
.1

 

P
O

M
M

Y
 '

L
IM

O
.,
 N

O
O

N
-1

P
M

 
D

O
P

P
o
l.

1
1
0
0
 .
1
 a

P
p

0
.0

1
. 
to

p
L

O
M

O
 

LP
 o

n
 o

n
lA

p
O

P
O

S
 p

ol
 A

O
 P

I 
IS

V
O

H
L

II
O

N
 	

=
A

T
O

P
 

11
1W

 1
13

M
01

V
3 

.I
.V

 S
31

V
1S

3 
9

3
0

.1
3

0
P

o
s 	

3/
67

•1
 6

  V
 

3
V

1
.1

.1
1
0
0
 B

M
. 

C
IN

3
0
 V

N
3
C

IV
I1

I 
L

I0
1
0
3
S

 C
IN

0
0
3
S

 d
Y

IN
 0

3
C

IN
3
lo

W
 

N
O

W
C

IO
V

IS
L

II
J 

S
3
1
V

1
S

3
 C

IN
3
E

1
 V

N
3
O

V
IN

 

A
IO

V
 

co
ro

ss
v

 3
11

V
 S

O
N

R
IV

38
 "

31
06

1 

37
.6

0.
1.

10
1.

4 

dV
V

I 
A

llO
IN

IA
 

3
D

V
3

V
0

V
 

M
O

M
 A

D
O

 

im
p

, 
o
r
:A

p
p

.:
4
W

 
s
o

o
k

o
 m

u
m

*
 

L
IN

O
 5

3
3

0
4

.7
 O

W
1

0
1

1
0

0
3

1
:I

 t
1

0
3

 

a
le

 O
P

. 	
E

G
O

IN
O

S
 T

P
L

O
O

P
P

O
II

O
N

3
 J

O
 0

0
1
0
3
6
0
 

,0
3
/1

0
1
.1

. 

or
.7

13
O

6 
T

U
N

 T
ri

m
al

ro
 .0

1
 S

IL
V

IS
M

T
P

 -1
1

3
/P

O
IV

O
 V

O
3

lV
IO

.2
M

O
 N

O
S

M
3

1
4

3
1

,P
O

S
IA

P
P

In
S

O
V

O
P

 

P
1
 S

-9
3
0
0
 A

O
 0

3
.3

1
-1

3
 

en
sr

vo
lo

m
vi

va
l 

• 
p

o
u

f.
 p

o
 T

O
O

 A
m

u
 O

M
 P

O
 P

o
, 

*
p

o
o

p
 

U
r
.3

n
M

5
5
N

O
N

  A
N

. 
N

O
S

 M
N

 
11

.1
4,

 s
kp

 
p

x
, 
a
t,

 b
a
.n

q
 m

o
p

 p
o
t,

 S
N

A
P

 P
R

O
M

S
 W

O
W

 p
O

 P
o
p

 p
a
 p

o
o
ro

a
,p

so
• 

im
p

 P
O

M
O

 

W
M

- I
n

tl
 M

O
W

%
 6
.6

 .
6.

1
67

66
6.

6.
6  

.1
.0

1
m

, 
p

m
*
 p

r
e
..

.,
 m

A
r
n

q
u

a
o
r
w

, 



Figure 22: Cahaba River Road / Acton Road East 
Land Use Analysis 

Neighborhood - pnmanly hew / meshum density single-tamily residential 
areas with higher densities near village cents-As), Other uses may include 
schools, places of worship. recreational areas, and open space. 

Village Center - mixed use centers with highest densities in core areas. 
Mix of nuts should include retail and servioe busineases, pnifessional offices, 
high density residential arca, insmunons, reciranon areal. and public spaces. 

Commercial Core primarily high density, rend and server biomes, 

ART. with InOtiTsuvriA laic. and rnulti4annly rcselenc.e, ■ th upper fl. KAT of 

on periphery. Other uses may include insatuzions and public space. 

0  Gateways and Nodes • liorway5 are entryway, into the community or 
sqllagr enhanced with consisteni signaite, landscaping, and other elrnwnts. 
Nodes are sacs, such as transit stops, where public spaces. ugnage, and other 
Public design elements should he considered, 

Professional Offices • primarily proxissional Mice uses. Density should 
vary according to surrounding, O ther uses may include retail and servwes 
(*Lwow-ling ...lines and employees), place* ot wnthip, public spaces, And open space 

Recreation and Open Space public and private remotion facilities and 
preserved natural spaces. Recreation facilities may be active, passive or combined. Open 
space, are areas preaerwc1 in a natural stare and may include passwr recreanonal uses 

Tr:unleash Trailheasis ate public ores along a trail. whete bike tacks. seating, 
parking, and public amenities arc prianded fur mail users. 

■ Schools School facilities admmiserared by the Vestmna HrUa Schigal System 

kNd 
	

Ably 	Tidy lCV 

1 	  

Po tiil for 
o ce uses 

115 	 Vestavia Hilly Comprehensive Plan 



Ordinance Number 2584 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2584 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 11th day of May, 2015, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

4711 Caldwell Mill Road 
David Acton Building Corp., Owner(s) 

 
More Particularly Described as Follows: 
 

Part of the NE ¼ of the SW ¼ of Section 34, Township 18 South, Range 2 
West, more particularly described as follows: 
 
Begin at the SE corner of said 1/4-1/4 Section; thence North along the 
East line of said 1/4-1/4 Section 233.0 feet; thence 90 Degrees left 224.0 
feet; thence 90 degrees right 83.30 feet; thence 77 degrees 50 minutes left 
334.17 feet to a point on the east right-of-way of a County Road (Caldwell 
Mill Road) thence 85 degrees 35 minutes left along said right-of-way 
33.93 feet; thence 8 degrees 19 minutes left 191.5 feet; thence 92 degrees 
29 minutes left 139.75 feet; thence 88 degrees 29 minutes right 118.0 feet 



Ordinance Number 2584 
Page 2 

 
to a point on the South line of said 1/4-1/4 Section; thence 91 degrees, 08 
minutes, 44 seconds left along the South line of said 1/4-1/4 Section 
460.85 feet to the point of beginning. 

 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 24th day of August, 2015. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2584 
Page 3 

 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2584 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 24th day of August, 2015, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2013. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 







































Ordinance Number 2586 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2586 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM VESTAVIA HILLS R-
4 TO VESTAVIA HILLS B-1.2. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills R-4 (residential) 

Vestavia Hills B-1.2 (planned neighborhood commercial district):  

A Portion of 4308 Dolly Ridge Road 
Fred Acton 

 
More Particularly Described as Follows: 
 

Part of Lot 5, Block 1 of New Merkle Heights as recorded in Map Book 
19, Page 92 in the Office of the Judge of Probate, Jefferson County, 
Alabama being more particularly described as follows: 
 
Begin at the NE corner of said Lot 5, said point begin on the westerly right 
of way line of Dolly Ridge Road a 50’ wide public right-of-way; thence 
run SW along said right-of-way for 82.3 feet; thence turn 90 degrees to the 
right and run northwesterly for 138.3 feet to a point on the northerly 
property line of said Lot 5; thence run east along said northerly property 
line for 160.9 feet to the point of beginning. 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 24th day of August 2015. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2586 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2586 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 24th day of August, 2015 as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 
 



Ordiinance Number
P
r 2586 
Page 3 

 

 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     JULY 9, 2015 
 

• CASE:  P-0515-26 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Vestavia Hills R-4 Vestavia Hills B-1.2 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  4308 Dolly Ridge Rd. 
 

• APPLICANT/OWNER: Fred Acton 
 

• REPRESNTING AGENT: Trip Galloway 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property is on Dolly Ridge and adjacent to the corner 
property of Dolly Ridge Rd. and Manor Brook Dr., across from “In the Making”.  
Applicant is seeking rezoning to build an entry way and parking to serve the recently 
rezoned medical office. The rezoning will create 7 new parking spots and provide 
ingress/egress, as well as provide access to future development. The access proposed 
meets the requirements of the access management plan approved as part of the 
Cahaba Heights Village Amendments. 

 
• CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN:  The request is consistent with the 

Cahaba Heights Community Plan for mixed use and pedestrian oriented development. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  Development plan must be constraint with access 
management plan. Engineer will review drainage. 

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 
4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  



 2 

 
MOTION  Mr. Burrell made a motion to recommend approval of Rezoning of 4308 Dolly 
Ridge Rd. from Vestavia Hills R-4 to Vestavia Hills B-1.2 For The Purpose Of Mixed Use 
Development. Second was by Mr. Gilchrist. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Sharp – yes          
Mr. Wolfe – yes   Mr. House – yes     
Mr. Brooks – yes    Mr. Visintainer – yes     
Motion carried. 

 
 



Lot 7 	IN THE MAKING 
PROPERTY 

MANOR BROOK DRIVE 

1 • 9' 
Proposed Parking Lot 

/ 	7, 

	

/ 	/ // 

/ 	/ // 

/ 	/ // 	 /I 

/ 	/,'
/I I/ / 

/ 	 /1/
/I I/ / / 

/ //
// // / 

/ 

/ / 	 Future4evArlopment 

	

/ /1 	 //// / 

	

/ (-... 	
I/ 
I/ / 

/ 	
',... 	 ///I / 

/ 	 ///'
I  

I/ / 

Lot 5 
rea to be Re nQt 

. ti 
\ \ 
A  

v 
\ 

\-1 / 

V 

/ 

lints of Proposed Ingress / Egress 
and Parking Easement 

Rezoning Plan for 

Acton 
Property 

4308 Dolly Ridge Road 

Site Information:  

Current Zoning: R-4 

Proposed Zoning: B-1.2 

Legal Description:  
Part of Lot 5, Block 1 of New Merkle Heights as recorded in Map Book 19, Page 92 in the 
office of the Judge of Probate, Jefferson County, Alabama being more particularly 
described as follows: 

Begin at the northeast corner of said Lot 5, said point being on the westerly right of way 
line of Dolly Ridge Road a 50 foot wide public right of way; thence run southwest along 
said right of way for 82.3 feet; then turn 90° to the right and run northwesterly for 138.3 
feet to a point on the northerly property line of said Lot 5; thence run east along said 
northerly property line for 160.9 feet to the Point of Beginning; 

Pressnell 
Engineering 

884 High Pointe Drive 
Hayden, AL 35079 
P: 205.876.4335 
F: 205.417.2507 

0 
	

15 
	

30 
	

60 
	

120 

SCALE: 1* = 30' 



,  bes. AM 

I 

141 lil li, lit II! till 1 lil 	1 o 	
Hi 11441 10111 fill 	i  

iii1 , , 1 

	

ii<  Ali, 1; !!1 ::11 11:11 !:::::1 :il li i ii iii :ti ::il li i :: . 	6 .i 
i mol  1, 	 1 11111  

1 1 g 11111;111 1311111 il lijili i i i i Ilit I Iii id Ili' 8 
jililtiiii 1 gille a phliiii  I  . ill 1f ii. 11 1.1 I. . 1 1,. i f 1 	I II. 1 I 11 	III " 1 	Al 	I 	I I I!! 
itili l liliatli hiliellifiliii 11111 11 1/!!! Iliiiii  I  ' hill! 
n l  iji 	

1 11 
III 

	

1 ! III i ; lilt 111 1 11111 1 	I II 
!ii l l 	1 111 , itill' i l'i 	1 "I raigit — 

11011;1:1! 11 ille 
11p111 	tri 

if ii„ 
It 4141 ItIli s  

tit 
,„ 

V 
  

s i sj !ti li l l 	0 1 11 ' 1  III 	II , 

h rq1:1 	eL  , 1 11 1 .., 
11 1/11111 1 ° 111 
Ittihad! le 

1 	li, 	, 'II' lis Iiiii ft itiltill ,  ,, IV i ilf 2  

IIIIIiIiiiliiii 111 11  ,, i 	 .0  

1 ilOillilialfl 1111 Ilfi - 
1 iii i itiir I. .1 1 .'il. 	. lith0104 11,Piiiiiniihihilfil 

Ijilliiiiiiif`fliOVII gillipi  1 !ITIIIP  0 11 111 11.1141 Ilan  LI 

	

6.1  :  i 1 21 	1/  	a 



,  bes. AM 

I 

141 lil li, lit II! till 1 lil 	1 o 	
Hi 11441 10111 fill 	i  

iii1 , , 1 

	

ii<  Ali, 1; !!1 ::11 11:11 !:::::1 :il li i ii iii :ti ::il li i :: . 	6 .i 
i mol  1, 	 1 11111  

1 1 g 11111;111 1311111 il lijili i i i i Ilit I Iii id Ili' 8 
jililtiiii 1 gille a phliiii  I  . ill 1f ii. 11 1.1 I. . 1 1,. i f 1 	I II. 1 I 11 	III " 1 	Al 	I 	I I I!! 
itili l liliatli hiliellifiliii 11111 11 1/!!! Iliiiii  I  ' hill! 
n l  iji 	

1 11 
III 

	

1 ! III i ; lilt 111 1 11111 1 	I II 
!ii l l 	1 111 , itill' i l'i 	1 "I raigit — 

11011;1:1! 11 ille 
11p111 	tri 

if ii„ 
It 4141 ItIli s  

tit 
,„ 

V 
  

s i sj !ti li l l 	0 1 11 ' 1  III 	II , 

h rq1:1 	eL  , 1 11 1 .., 
11 1/11111 1 ° 111 
Ittihad! le 

1 	li, 	, 'II' lis Iiiii ft itiltill ,  ,, IV i ilf 2  

IIIIIiIiiiliiii 111 11  ,, i 	 .0  

1 ilOillilialfl 1111 Ilfi - 
1 iii i itiir I. .1 1 .'il. 	. lith0104 11,Piiiiiniihihilfil 

Ijilliiiiiiif`fliOVII gillipi  1 !ITIIIP  0 11 111 11.1141 Ilan  LI 

	

6.1  :  i 1 21 	1/  	a 



 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4744 
 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE FOR S R 

LIQUORS LLC D/B/A VESTAVIA PACKAGE STORE; MEESALA 
BHIKSHAPATHISRINIV AND THOTA RAVIKANTH, 
EXECUTIVES 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves 

the alcohol license for S R Liquors LLC d/b/a Vestavia Package Store, located at 2970 

Columbiana Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the off-premise sale of 011 - Lounge 

Retail Liquor - Class II (Package); Meesala Bhikshapathisriniv and Thota Ravikanth, 

executives. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 24th day of August, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Exhibit A - Resolution Number 4744



Exhibit A - Resolution Number 4744



Exhibit A - Resolution Number 4744



Exhibit A - Resolution Number 4744



Exhibit A - Resolution Number 4744



 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4745 
 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE FOR 

BRUNER HOLDINGS INC., D/B/A JOHNNY BRUSCOS PIZZA; 
WILLIAM BRUNER AND JOSHUA BRUNER, EXECUTIVES 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves 

the alcohol license for Bruner Holdings Inc., d/b/a Johnny Bruscos Pizza, located at 2516 

Rocky Ridge Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the on-premise sale of 020 - Restaurant 

Retail Liquor; William Bruner and Joshua Bruner, executives. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 24th day of August, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhbit A - Resolution Number 4745



Exhbit A - Resolution Number 4745



Exhbit A - Resolution Number 4745



Exhbit A - Resolution Number 4745



Exhbit A - Resolution Number 4745



Resolution Number 4751 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4751 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL OF THE FINAL 10% 
OF THE BUDGET FOR THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, at its 

regular meeting of August 25, 2014, adopted and approved Resolution Number 4627 to 

adopt 90% of a General Fund budget, 90% of a Special Revenue Fund budget and 90% of 

a Capital Project Fund budget for the fiscal year 2014-2015; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, wishes to 

adopt the final portion (10%) of aforesaid budgets for the fiscal year 2014-2015. 

 

Total Budget Recap 
 
 General Funds Special Funds Capital Projects 

Funds 
Total Budget Approved  

$  34,662,105.00 
 
$  2,877,994.00 

 
$       1,120,579 

Less 90% approved in Res. 
4308 & 4233 

 
$  31,195,894.00 

 
$  2,590,194.00 

 
$       1,008,521 

 
Final 10% to be approved 

 
$    3,466,211.00 

 
$     287,800.00 

 
$          112,058 

 
 

 BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

that the final portion of the annual budget amounting to $3,466,211.00 (general funds), 

$287,800.00 (special funds) and $112,058 (capital projects funds) for the fiscal year 

2014-2015 is hereby adopted. 

 

 



Resolution Number 4751 
Page 2 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 24th day of August, 2015. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings  
City Clerk 
 



Resolution Number 4627 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4627 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ADOPTING 

THE GENERAL FUND BUDGET, A SPECIAL 
REVENUE FUND BUDGET AND A CAPITAL 
PROJECT FUND BUDGET FOR THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS FOR THE PERIOD BEGINNING 
OCTOBER 1, 2014 UNTIL SEPTEMBER 30, 2015. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Manager has prepared and presented a “general fund 

budget” which has been reviewed and amended by the City Council for said period 

reflecting anticipated expenditures in the amount of $34,662,105 including transfers out, 

to be effective for the period beginning October 1, 2014, through September 30, 2015; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has prepared a “special fund budget” for said 

period reflecting anticipated expenditures in the amount of $2,877,994 including transfers 

from the General Fund, to be effective for the period beginning October 1, 2014, through 

September 30, 2015; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has prepared a “capital projects fund budget” for 

said period reflecting expenditures in the amount of $1,120,579 to be effective for the 

period beginning October 1, 2014, through September 30, 2015. 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-43-57, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides as follows: 

 Annual appropriation of funds for expenditures of all 
departments and interest on indebtedness:  In all cities, the 
Council shall appropriate the sums necessary for the 
expenditures of the several City departments and for the 
interest on its bonded and other indebtedness, not 
exceeding in the aggregate within ten (10) percent of its 
estimated expenses, and such City Council shall not 
appropriate in the aggregate an amount in excess of its 
annual legally authorized revenue.  But, nothing in this 
section shall prevent such cities from anticipating their 
revenues for the year for which such appropriation was 
made, or from contracting for temporary loans as provided 
in the applicable provision of this title, or from bonding or 

20
14

-20
15

 

Bud
ge

t



Resolution Number 4627 
Page 2 

 
refunding their outstanding indebtedness or from 
appropriating anticipated revenue at any time for the 
current expenses of the City and interest on the bonded and 
other indebtedness of the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council agrees to approve and adopt ninety (90) percent, or 

$31,195,894, of the municipal “general fund budget” for the City of Vestavia Hills for 

fiscal year 2014-2015 upon the terms, conditions, and provisions set forth below; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council agrees to approve and adopt ninety (90) percent, or 

$2,590,194, of the municipal “special revenue fund budget” for the City of Vestavia Hills 

for fiscal year 2014-2015 upon the terms, conditions and provisions set forth below; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council agrees to approve and adopt ninety (90) percent, or 

$1,008,521, of the “capital project fund budget” for the City of Vestavia Hills for fiscal 

year 2014-2015 upon the terms, conditions and provisions set forth below. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

   1.  The municipal “general fund budget” for the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, prepared by the City Manager and submitted to the City Council is 

hereby approved and adopted to the extent of expenditures of $31,195,382, which said 

amount is not exceeding the aggregate within ten (10) percent of the estimated expenses: 

$34,662,105 multiplied by 90% equals 
$31,195,894; and 

 
   2.  The municipal “special revenue fund budget” for the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, prepared by the City Manager and submitted to the City 

Council is hereby approved and adopted to the extent of expenditures of $2,590,194 

which said amount is not exceeding the aggregate within ten (10) percent of the estimated 

expenses: 

20
14

-20
15

 

Bud
ge

t



Resolution Number 4627 
Page 3 

 
$2,877,994 multiplied by 90% equals 

$2,590,194; and 
 

   3.  The “capital projects fund budget” for the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, prepared by the City Manager and submitted to the City Council is 

hereby approved and adopted to the extent of expenditures of $1,008,521which said 

amount is not exceeding the aggregate within ten (10) percent of the estimated expenses: 

$1,120,579 multiplied by 90% equals 
$1,008,521; and 

 

   3.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to expend the sum of 

$31,195,894 from the General Fund, $2,590,194 from the Special Revenue Fund and 

$1,008,521 from the Capital Projects Fund for municipal expenses for the period 

beginning October 1, 2014, and ending September 30, 2015. 

   4.  Copies of the budget outlines are attached hereto, marked as 

Exhibit “A” and incorporated into this Resolution by reference as though set out fully 

herein. 

5.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its 

approval and adoption. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 25th day of August, 2014. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

20
14

-20
15

 

Bud
ge

t



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4627

20
14

-20
15

 

Bud
ge

t



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4627

20
14

-20
15

 

Bud
ge

t



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4627

20
14

-20
15

 

Bud
ge

t



Resolution Number 4752 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4752 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ADOPTING 

THE GENERAL FUND BUDGET, A SPECIAL 
REVENUE FUND BUDGET, A CAPITAL PROJECT 
FUND BUDGET, AND A SIDEWALK PROJECT 
FUND BUDGET FOR THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS FOR THE PERIOD BEGINNING OCTOBER 
1, 2015 UNTIL SEPTEMBER 30, 2016. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Manager has prepared and presented a “general fund 

budget” which has been reviewed and amended by the City Council for said period 

reflecting anticipated expenditures in the amount of $35,798,884 including transfers out, 

to be effective for the period beginning October 1, 2015, through September 30, 2016; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has prepared a “special fund budget” for said 

period reflecting anticipated expenditures in the amount of $2,800,702 including transfers 

from the General Fund, to be effective for the period beginning October 1, 2015, through 

September 30, 2016; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has prepared a “capital projects fund budget” for 

said period reflecting expenditures in the amount of $1,175,006 to be effective for the 

period beginning October 1, 2015, through September 30, 2016. 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has prepared a “sidewalk projects fund budget” 

for said period reflecting expenditures in the amount of $200,000 to be effective for the 

period beginning October 1, 2015, through September 30, 2016. 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-43-57, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides as follows: 

 Annual appropriation of funds for expenditures of all 
departments and interest on indebtedness:  In all cities, the 
Council shall appropriate the sums necessary for the 
expenditures of the several City departments and for the 
interest on its bonded and other indebtedness, not 
exceeding in the aggregate within ten (10) percent of its 



Resolution Number 4752 
Page 2 

 
estimated expenses, and such City Council shall not 
appropriate in the aggregate an amount in excess of its 
annual legally authorized revenue.  But, nothing in this 
section shall prevent such cities from anticipating their 
revenues for the year for which such appropriation was 
made, or from contracting for temporary loans as provided 
in the applicable provision of this title, or from bonding or 
refunding their outstanding indebtedness or from 
appropriating anticipated revenue at any time for the 
current expenses of the City and interest on the bonded and 
other indebtedness of the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council agrees to approve and adopt ninety (90) percent, or 

$32,218,996, of the municipal “general fund budget” for the City of Vestavia Hills for 

fiscal year 2015-2016 upon the terms, conditions, and provisions set forth below; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council agrees to approve and adopt ninety (90) percent, or 

$2,520,632, of the municipal “special revenue fund budget” for the City of Vestavia Hills 

for fiscal year 2015-2016 upon the terms, conditions and provisions set forth below; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council agrees to approve and adopt ninety (90) percent, or 

$1,057,505, of the “capital project fund budget” for the City of Vestavia Hills for fiscal 

year 2015-2016 upon the terms, conditions and provisions set forth below. 

 WHEREAS, the City Council agrees to approve and adopt ninety (90) percent, or 

$180,000, of the “sidewalk project fund budget” for the City of Vestavia Hills for fiscal 

year 2015-2016 upon the terms, conditions and provisions set forth below. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

   1.  The municipal “general fund budget” for the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, prepared by the City Manager and submitted to the City Council is 

hereby approved and adopted to the extent of expenditures of $32,218,996, which said 

amount is not exceeding the aggregate within ten (10) percent of the estimated expenses: 



Resolution Number 4752 
Page 3 

 
$35,798,884 multiplied by 90% equals 

$32,218,996; and 
 

   2.  The municipal “special revenue fund budget” for the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, prepared by the City Manager and submitted to the City 

Council is hereby approved and adopted to the extent of expenditures of $2,520,632 

which said amount is not exceeding the aggregate within ten (10) percent of the estimated 

expenses: 

$2,800,702 multiplied by 90% equals 
$2,520,632; and 

 

   3.  The “capital projects fund budget” for the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, prepared by the City Manager and submitted to the City Council is 

hereby approved and adopted to the extent of expenditures of $1,057,505 which said 

amount is not exceeding the aggregate within ten (10) percent of the estimated expenses: 

$1,175,006 multiplied by 90% equals 
$1,057,505; and 

 

   3.  The “sidewalk projects fund budget” for the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, prepared by the City Manager and submitted to the City Council is 

hereby approved and adopted to the extent of expenditures of $200,000 which said 

amount is not exceeding the aggregate within ten (10) percent of the estimated expenses: 

$200,000 multiplied by 90% equals 
$180,000; and 

 

   3.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to expend the sum of 

$32,218,996 from the General Fund, $2,531,638 from the Special Revenue Fund, 

$1,057,505 from the Capital Projects Fund, and $180,000 from the Sidewalk Projects 



Resolution Number 4752 
Page 4 

 
Fund for municipal expenses for the period beginning October 1, 2015, and ending 

September 30, 2016. 

   4.  Copies of the budget outlines are attached hereto, marked as 

Exhibit “A” and incorporated into this Resolution by reference as though set out fully 

herein. 

5.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its 

approval and adoption. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of September, 2015. 

 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Mayor Pro Tem 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



E
xhibit A

 - R
esolution N

o. 4752



E
xhibit A

 - R
esolution N

o. 4752



E
xhibit A

 - R
esolution N

o. 4752



Resolution Number 4746 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4746 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 

OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated April 14, 2015, wherein all owners of certain property contiguous 

to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property be 

annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 14th day of September, 2015; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 23rd day of September, 2015. 

 2.  That on the 28th day of December, 2015, in the Vestavia Hills Municipal 

Center, a public hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said 

petition and to consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk 

prior to such hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of 

an Ordinance annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4746 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 



Resolution Number 4746 
Page 2 

 
annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

3527 Valley Circle 
Lot 5, Block 1, Dolly Ridge Estates, Second Sector 

Paul and Katie Harbinson, Owner(s) 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of September, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Mayor Pro-Tem 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 



Resolution Number 4746 
Page 3 

 

 
 
 















Ordinance Number 2587 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2587 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Paul and Katie Harbinson dated 

April 14, 2015, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the 

corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia 

Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest 

that said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, 

Code of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to 

embrace and include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present 

corporate limits.  The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the 

distance between the old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other 

municipality.  Said territory is described as follows: 

 
3527 Valley Circle 

Lot 5, Block 1, Dolly Ridge Estates, Second Sector 
Paul and Katie Harbinson 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this 

Ordinance containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be 

published/posted in accordance with Alabama law. 



Ordinance Number 2587 
Page 2 

 
  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of September, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Mayor Pro-Tem 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2587 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 14th day of September, 2015, as same appears in the official 
records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2587 
Page 3 

 

 



Resolution Number 4747 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4747 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 

OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated February 25, 2015, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 14th day of September, 2015; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 23rd day of September, 2015. 

 2.  That on the 28th day of December, 2015, in the Vestavia Hills Municipal 

Center, a public hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said 

petition and to consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk 

prior to such hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of 

an Ordinance annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4747 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 



Resolution Number 4747 
Page 2 

 
annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

3579 Valley Circle 
Lot 18, Block 1, Amended Map of Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Addition 

P. David Deusner, Owner(s) 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of September, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Mayor Pro-Tem 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 



Resolution Number 4747 
Page 3 

 

 















Ordinance Number 2588 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2588 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by  dated February 25, 2015, that 

the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the corporate limits of the 

City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest 

that said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, 

Code of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to 

embrace and include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present 

corporate limits.  The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the 

distance between the old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other 

municipality.  Said territory is described as follows: 

 
3579 Valley Circle 

Lot 18, Block 1, Amended Map of Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Addition 
P. David Deusner, Owner 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this 

Ordinance containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be 

published/posted in accordance with Alabama law. 

 



Ordinance Number 2588 
Page 2 

 
  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of September, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Mayor Pro-Tem 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2588 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 14th day of September, 2015, as same appears in the official 
records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2588 
Page 3 

 

 



Resolution Number «Resolution_Number» 

Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4748 
 

 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 

OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 

LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 

ALABAMA. 

 

 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated August 11, 2015, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 14th day of September, 2015; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 23rd day of September. 

 2.  That on the 28th day of December, 2015, in the Vestavia Hills Municipal 

Center, a public hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said 

petition and to consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk 

prior to such hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of 

an Ordinance annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4748 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 



Resolution Number «Resolution_Number» 

Page 2 

 

annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2720 Alta View Drive 

Tony and Abbie Miller, Owner(s) 

 

More particularly described as follows: 

 

A parcel of land situated in the SW ¼ of Section 27 and the SE ¼ of 

Section 28, Township, 18 South, Range 2 West, being more particularly 

described as follows: 

 

Commence at the SE corner of the NE ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 28, and 

run in a southerly direction along the east line of the SE ¼ of the SE ¼ of 

Section 28, a distance of 100.00 feet to a point; thence 112 degrees 50’ to 

the right in a northwesterly direction a distance of 165.20 feet to the point 

of beginning; thence continuing along the last described course a distance 

of 35.34 feet to a point; thence 7 degrees 53’ to the right in a northwesterly 

direction, a distance of 283.32 feet to a point on the rear line of Lot 16, 

Altadena Estates; thence 108 degrees 24’ 30” to the right in a northeasterly 

direction along the rear line of Lots 16 & 15, Altadena Estates and its 

prolongation thereof a distance of 588.51 feet to a point; thence 109 

degrees 31’ to the right in a southeasterly direction a distance of 190.00 

feet to a point; thence 66 degrees 51’ to the right in a southwesterly 

direction a distance of 163.77 feet to a point; thence 13 degrees 58’ to the 

left in a southwesterly direction a distance of 125.65 feet to the point of 

curve (PC) of a curve to the left having a radius of 202.63 feet, and a 

central angle of 22 degrees, 20’; thence along the arc of said curve to the 

left a distance of 78.98 feet to the point of reverse curve, (PRC), thence 

along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 187.11 feet, and a 

central angle of 24 degrees 08’ for a distance of 78.81 feet to the point of 

beginning. 

 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of September, 2015. 

 

 

 

 

      Steve Ammons 

      Mayor Pro-Tem 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 



Resolution Number «Resolution_Number» 

Page 3 

 

City Clerk 

 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2589 

Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2589 
 

 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 

ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 

CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 

WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 

OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 

  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Tony and Abbie Miller dated 

August 1, 2015, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the 

corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia 

Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest 

that said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, 

Code of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to 

embrace and include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present 

corporate limits.  The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the 

distance between the old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other 

municipality.  Said territory is described as follows: 

 

2720 Alta View Drive 

Tony and Abbie Miller 

 

More particularly described as follows: 

 

A parcel of land situated in the SW ¼ of Section 27 and the SE ¼ of 

Section 28, Township, 18 South, Range 2 West, being more particularly 

described as follows: 

 



Ordinance Number 2589 

Page 2 

 

Commence at the SE corner of the NE ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 28, and 

run in a southerly direction along the east line of the SE ¼ of the SE ¼ of 

Section 28, a distance of 100.00 feet to a point; thence 112 degrees 50’ to 

the right in a northwesterly direction a distance of 165.20 feet to the point 

of beginning; thence continuing along the last described course a distance 

of 35.34 feet to a point; thence 7 degrees 53’ to the right in a northwesterly 

direction, a distance of 283.32 feet to a point on the rear line of Lot 16, 

Altadena Estates; thence 108 degrees 24’ 30” to the right in a northeasterly 

direction along the rear line of Lots 16 & 15, Altadena Estates and its 

prolongation thereof a distance of 588.51 feet to a point; thence 109 

degrees 31’ to the right in a southeasterly direction a distance of 190.00 

feet to a point; thence 66 degrees 51’ to the right in a southwesterly 

direction a distance of 163.77 feet to a point; thence 13 degrees 58’ to the 

left in a southwesterly direction a distance of 125.65 feet to the point of 

curve (PC) of a curve to the left having a radius of 202.63 feet, and a 

central angle of 22 degrees, 20’; thence along the arc of said curve to the 

left a distance of 78.98 feet to the point of reverse curve, (PRC), thence 

along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 187.11 feet, and a 

central angle of 24 degrees 08’ for a distance of 78.81 feet to the point of 

beginning. 

 

 

  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this 

Ordinance containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be 

published/posted in accordance with Alabama law. 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of September, 2015. 

 

 

 

 

      Steve Ammons 

      Mayor Pro-Tem 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2589 

Page 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION: 
 

 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2589 is a true and 

correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills on the 14th day of September, 2015, as same appears in the official 

records of said City. 

 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 

Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 

______ day of ______________, 2015. 

 

 

 

      Rebecca Leavings 

      City Clerk 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2589 

Page 4 

 

 



Resolution Number 4749 

Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4749 
 

 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 

OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 

LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 

ALABAMA. 

 

 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated May 15, 2015, wherein all owners of certain property contiguous 

to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property be 

annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 14th day of September, 2015; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 23rd dayof September, 2015. 

 2.  That on the 28th day of December, 2015, in the Vestavia Hills Municipal 

Center, a public hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said 

petition and to consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk 

prior to such hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of 

an Ordinance annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4749 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 



Resolution Number 4749 

Page 2 

 

annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2615 Alta Vista Circle 

Lot 6, Altadena Valley Country Club Sector 

Bradley and Kelly Belew, Owner(s) 

 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of September, 2015. 

 

 

 

 

      Steve Ammons 

      Mayor Pro-Tem 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

 

 

 



Resolution Number 4749 

Page 3 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2590 

Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2590 
 

 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 

ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 

CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 

WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 

OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 

  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Bradley and Kelly Belew dated 

May 15, 2015, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the 

corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia 

Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest 

that said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, 

Code of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to 

embrace and include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present 

corporate limits.  The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the 

distance between the old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other 

municipality.  Said territory is described as follows: 

 

2615 Alta Vista Circle 

Lot 6, Altadena Valley Country Club Sector 

Bradley and Kelly Belew 

 

  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this 

Ordinance containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be 

published/posted in accordance with Alabama law. 



Ordinance Number 2590 

Page 2 

 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of September, 2015. 

 

 

 

 

      Steve Ammons  

      Mayor Pro-Tem 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION: 
 

 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2590 is a true and 

correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills on the 14th day of September, 2015, as same appears in the official 

records of said City. 

 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 

Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 

______ day of ______________, 2015. 

 

 

 

      Rebecca Leavings 

      City Clerk 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2590 

Page 3 

 

 



Resolution Number 4750 

Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4750 
 

 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 

OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 

LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 

ALABAMA. 

 

 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated July 31, 2015, wherein all owners of certain property contiguous to 

the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property be annexed 

to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 14th day of September, 2015; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 23rd day of September, 2015. 

 2.  That on the 28th day of December, 2015, in the Vestavia Hills Municipal 

Center, a public hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said 

petition and to consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk 

prior to such hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of 

an Ordinance annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4750 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 



Resolution Number 4750 

Page 2 

 

annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

4670 Caldwell Mill Road 

Brooks and Elisabeth Souders, Owner(s) 

 

More particularly described as follows: 

 

Begin at the SW corner of the SE ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 34, Township 

18 South, Range 2 West; thence run East along the South line of said 1/4-

1/4 line for a distance of 650.87 feet to the Point of Beginning; thence 

continue along the last described course for a distance of 390.47 feet to the 

centerline of Old Caldwell Mill Road; thence turn 100 degrees 14’ 23” left 

and run Northwesterly along centerline of said Old Caldwell Road for 

distance of 121.69 feet; thence turn 89 degrees 01’ 18” left and run 

Southwesterly for a distance of 146.88 feet; thence turn 12 degrees 54’ 

02” right and run Northwesterly for a distance of 175.76 feet to the 

centerline of a branch; thence turn 61 degrees 58’ 34” left and run 

Southwesterly along centerline of said branch for a distance of 29.13 feet; 

thence turn 9 degrees 45’ 11” left and continue Southwesterly along 

centerline of said branch a distance of 88.89 feet to the Point of 

Beginning.  Situated in Jefferson County Alabama (Birmingham 

Division). 

 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of September, 2015. 

 

 

 

 

      Steve Ammons 

      Mayor Pro-Tem 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

 

 



Resolution Number 4750 

Page 3 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2591 

Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2591 
 

 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 

ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 

CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 

WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 

OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 

  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Brooks and Elisabeth Souders 

dated July 31, 2015, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to 

the corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia 

Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest 

that said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, 

Code of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to 

embrace and include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present 

corporate limits.  The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the 

distance between the old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other 

municipality.  Said territory is described as follows: 

 

4670 Caldwell Mill Road 

Brooks and Elisabeth Souders 

 

More particularly described as follows: 

 

Begin at the SW corner of the SE ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 34, Township 

18 South, Range 2 West; thence run East along the South line of said 1/4-

1/4 line for a distance of 650.87 feet to the Point of Beginning; thence 

continue along the last described course for a distance of 390.47 feet to the 



Ordinance Number 2591 

Page 2 

 

centerline of Old Caldwell Mill Road; thence turn 100 degrees 14’ 23” left 

and run Northwesterly along centerline of said Old Caldwell Road for 

distance of 121.69 feet; thence turn 89 degrees 01’ 18” left and run 

Southwesterly for a distance of 146.88 feet; thence turn 12 degrees 54’ 

02” right and run Northwesterly for a distance of 175.76 feet to the 

centerline of a branch; thence turn 61 degrees 58’ 34” left and run 

Southwesterly along centerline of said branch for a distance of 29.13 feet; 

thence turn 9 degrees 45’ 11” left and continue Southwesterly along 

centerline of said branch a distance of 88.89 feet to the Point of 

Beginning.  Situated in Jefferson County Alabama (Birmingham 

Division). 

 

 

  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this 

Ordinance containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be 

published/posted in accordance with Alabama law. 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of September, 2015. 

 

 

 

 

      Steve Ammons 

      Mayor Pro-Tem 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2591 

Page 3 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION: 
 

 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2591 is a true and 

correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills on the 14th day of September, 2015, as same appears in the official 

records of said City. 

 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 

Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 

______ day of ______________, 2015. 

 

 

 

      Rebecca Leavings 

      City Clerk 

 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2591 

Page 4 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2592 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2592 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 28th day of May, 2015, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

74 +/- acres adjacent to Cahaba River 
Freshwater Land Trust, Owner(s) 

 
More Particularly Described As Parcels 1 through 7 as described in 
Exhibit B attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4713 
as though written fully therein. 

 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2592 
Page 2 

 
 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 14th day of September, 2015. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2592 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 14th day of September, 2015, as same appears in the official 
records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 



 

Ordinancce Number 259
Page

92 
e 3 

 

 



























Ordinance Number 2593 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2593 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY R-1 AND VESTAVIA HILLS R-2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS 
R-9 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County R-1 

(residential) and Vestavia Hills R-2 (residential) to Vestavia Hills R-9 (planned 

residential):  

2330, 2342, 2412 Jacobs Road 
Anna Steele Properties 

 
More Particularly Described in Attached Legal Description marked as 
“Exhibit A” attached to and incorporated into this Ordinance Number 
2593 as though written fully therein. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that said rezoning is contingent upon the 

following three conditions: 

1. Approval is conditioned upon the preliminary plat submitted;  

2. Maintenance covenants will be submitted to the Planning and Zoning 

Commission with the final plat; 

3. Lots 28-30 shall have one shared driveway. 

 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of September, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2593 
Page 2 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2593 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 24th day of August, 2015 as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 
 



Ordiinance Number
P
r 2593 
Page 3 

 

 



OVERALL LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

A parcel of land situated in the Southwest quarter of the Northwest quarter of Section 36 Township 18 

South Range 3 West and all of lots 1 and 2 of Weavers Addition to Jacobs Road as recorded in the office 

of Judge of probate in Jefferson County, Alabama Plat Book 198 Page 91, all being more particularly 

described as follows. 

Begin at a found capped rebar, said point marking the Northwest corner of lot 10-A Senior Citizens 

Estates, as recorded in the Office Of Judge of Probate Jefferson County, Alabama in Map book 178 Page 

36; thence run South 00 Degrees 44 Minutes 36 Seconds East along the west line of said subdivision for 

a distance of 295.39 feet to a found capped rebar said point being on the north line of the Crossgate 

Subdivision Second Sector as recorded in the office of Judge of Probate Jefferson County, Alabama in 

Plat book 152 page 41 ; thence run North 89 degrees 18 Minutes 35 seconds West along the north line 

of said subdivision for a distance of 338.52 feet to a found 3/4" rebar; thence run North 00 Degrees 42 

Minutes 30 Seconds West along the east line of a Resurvey of lots 32-41 of Crossgate First sector as 

recorded in the office of Judge of Probate Jefferson County Alabama in Plat book 148 Page 17, for a 

distance of 539.82 feet to a found capped rebar; thence leaving said subdivision run South 89 Degrees 

42 Minutes 11 Seconds East for a distance of 11.09 feet, to a set capped rebar stamped CA-560-LS; 

thence run North 00 Degrees 40 Minutes 28 Seconds West for a distance of 591.49 feet, to a found 

capped rebar stamped Weygand; thence run North 63 Degrees 17 Minutes 06 Seconds East for a 

distance of 163.17 feet, to a found capped rebar stamped Weygand, said point being on the Western 

most right of way of Jacobs Road; thence run South 30 Degrees 24 Minutes 09 Seconds East, along said 

right of way for a distance of 344.73 feet, to a found PK nail, said point marking the Northeast corner of 

Lot-1 Weaver's Addition To Jacob's Road as recorded in the Office Of Judge of Probate Jefferson County, 

Alabama in Map book 188 Page 91; thence leaving said right of way run South 00 Degrees 39 Minutes 06 

Seconds East along the East line of said Subdivision for a distance of 94.71 feet, to a found PK nail; 

thence run South 00 Degrees 38 Minutes 06 Seconds East along the east line of said subdivision for a 

distance of 276.32 to a found pk nail; thence run South 88 Degrees 07 Minutes 27 Seconds East for a 

distance of 5.67 feet to a set capped rebar stamped.CA-560-LS; thence run South 01 Degrees 18 Minutes 

49 Seconds East for a distance of 2.07 feet to a set capped rebar stamped CA-560-LS, thence run North 

75 Degrees 04 Minutes 29 Seconds East for a distance of 7.99 feet to a set capped rebar stamped CA-

560-LS; thence run South 89 Degrees 26 Minutes 32 Seconds East for 210.35 feet to a found capped 

rebar, said point being on the West right of way of Jacobs road, said point also being on a curve turning 

to the right, said curve having a radius of 1113.12 feet, a central angle of 09 Degrees 20 Minutes 43 

Seconds, a cord bearing of South 20 Degrees 28 Minutes 12 Seconds East, and a cord distance of 181.36 

feet; thence run along the arc of said curve and along said right of way for a distance of 181.56 feet, to a 

set capped rebar stamped CA-560LS, said point marking point of tangency of said curve; thence run 

South 15 Degrees 47 Minutes 50 Seconds East along a line tangent to said curve along said right of way 

for a distance of 36.86 feet to a set capped rebar stamped CA-560-LS, said point marking the Northeast 

corner of lot 11-A a resurvey of lots 10-14 senior citizens estates as recorded in the office of Judge of 

Probate Jefferson County Alabama Plat book 178 page 36; thence run South 86 Degrees 27 Minutes 40 

West Seconds along the north line of said subdivision for a distance of 172.86 feet to a found capped 

rebar; thence run South 03 Degrees 37 Minutes 19 Seconds East along the north line of said subdivision 

for a distance of 19.97 feet to a found capped rebar; thence run South 86 Degrees 37 Minutes 07 

Seconds west along the north line of said subdivision for a distance of 113.27 feet to the Point of 

Beginning. Said parcel contains 420,404 square feet or 9.65 acres more or less. 

P0715-40/129-36-2:2413 
2330, 2342 & 2412 Jacobs Rd. 
Rezone to R-9 
HCI Jacobs Road, LLC/Anna Steele 
Propterties 	R-1 & R-2 

Exhibit A - Legal Description



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     JULY 9, 2015 
 

• CASE:  P-0715-40 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning for 2330, 2342, & 2412 Jacobs Rd. from 
Jefferson County R-1 and Vestavia Hills R-2 to Vestavia Hills R-9 For The Purposes 
Of Annexation and Preliminary Plat Approval For Thirty New Residential Lots 

 
•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2330, 2342, & 2412 Jacobs Rd. 

  
• APPLICANT/OWNER: HCI Jacobs Road, LLC & Anna Steele Properties, LLC   

 
• REPRESNTING AGENT: Brian Harris  

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property is primarily undeveloped and un-annexed 

property adjacent to Jacobs Rd.  City Council passed Resolution Number 4701 on 
4/2/15 (attached) beginning the 90 day annexation process for the parcel of land 
which lots 1-27 are situated on. Lots 28-30 are also part of the subdivision but are 
already within city limits and will be recorded separately as a seperate phase.  

 
Lots 1-27 average around a quarter of an acre in size, with lots 28-30 being much 
larger. The proposed setbacks for lots 1-27 are 15’ front, 5’ on the side, and 25’ in the 
rear. 
 
Application will continue to City Council on 8/10/15 for potential annexation and 
rezoning. If approved, applicant will return in September/October for final plat. 
 

• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The request is consistent with 
the Comprehensive Plan for Neighborhood, low/medium density single family 
development. 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 



 2 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 
4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

MOTION  Mr. Wolfe made a motion to recommend approval 2330, 2342, & 2412 Jacobs 
Rd. from Jefferson County R-1 and Vestavia Hills R-2 to Vestavia Hills R-9 For The Purposes 
Of Annexation and Preliminary Plat Approval For Thirty New Residential Lots with the 
following conditions 

1. Approval is conditioned to the preliminary plat 
submitted; 

2. Maintenance covenants will be submitted with final 
plat; 

3. Lots 28-30 will have a shared driveway.  
Second was by Mr. Burrell. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Sharp – yes          
Mr. Wolfe – yes   Mr. House – yes     
Mr. Visintainer – yes    Mr. Brooks – yes     
Mr. Larson – yes    Motion carried. 

 




























    



  





PROPOSED PLAT FOR
STEELEMONT SUBDIVISION

VESTAVIA HILLS, AL
ENGINEER:

SURVEYOR:

DEVELOPER:

No. 28296
PROFESSIONAL

E

N G I N E E

R

L

I C
E N S E D

Lot C-1
(Common Area)



highway 
commercial 

11••• 

i• 	
• • 

1 • 

• 
/ HOMEWOOD 

44.%. • •■•• 

gateway 
00111. • .•.•s. 3 

I I 	4%  • 

4 .  (1 

II 

high 
density 

residential 

...A 
r • Berry 
i Middle 

school 	c's 

high 
density 

residential 

" II 

PIO 

Figure 20: Columbiana Road 
Land Use Analysis 

Neighborhood  •  primarily low  /  medium density singlohnuly resuiennal 

areas with higher densities near olive center(s). Other uses may include 

schools, places of worship, recreational areas. and open space. 

I 	I  Village Center rmwd use centers with highest Amities in core areas. 

	 Mot of uses should include read and service businesses, protessional offices. 

high density residential areas institutions. recreation areas, and public spaces. 

Commercial Core primarily high density, retail and service business 
areas with professional offices and multifamily residences on upper floors or 

nn penphert Other saes may include mammon* and public space. 

(l) Gateways and Nodes Cote-ways art entrywass into the community or 
village enhanced with consistent signage. landscaping, and other elements. 

Mules Are fit., such as transit stop, where public spaces. signage, and other 

public design elements should be considered. 

Professional Offices  .•  primarily professional office LISC3. Density should 

sore according m surnsundings Other uses may include retail and tenders 

isupporting offices and employees), places of statist-lip, public spaces, and open space. 

Recreation and Open Space - pubic and private recreation facilities and 

preserved natural spaces. Recreation bathes may be acme, passive or combined. Open 

spaces are ateas preserved in is natural ware and may include parent recreational uses. 

Trail heads Traitheasli are public sires along  a  trail, where hike racks, seating, 

parking, and public amenities are provided toe trail users .  

■ Schools  -  Sibusol tacilmes atimmtstratcd by the Vestassa tills School System. 

;00 WA, 	-see,  fis 

105 	 1 "estavia Hill-  Comprehensive Plan 



Ordinance Number 2594 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2594 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 27th day of April, 2015, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2330 Jacobs Road 
Anna Steele Properties LLC, Owner(s) 

 
A parcel of land situated in the Southwest quarter of the Northwest quarter 
of Section 36 Township 18 South, Range 3 West, Jefferson County, 
Alabama, being more particularly described as follows: 
 
Beginning at found capped rebar marking the Southwest corner of Lot 6-
A, A Resurvey of Lots 6&7, Senior Citizen Estates as recorded in the 
Office of Judge of Probate in Jefferson County, Alabama in Map Book 
179, Page 71, said point also being on the North line of Crossgate 
Subdivision Second Sector as recorded in the Office of the Judge of 
Probate in Jefferson County, Alabama in Map Book 152, Page 41; thence 
run north 89 degrees 18 minutes 35 seconds west along said north line for 
a distance of 338.52 feet to a found ¾” rebar said point being on the East 



Ordinance Number 2594 
Page 2 

 
line of a Resurvey of Lots 32-41, Crossgate First Sector as recorded in the 
Office of the Judge of Probate, Jefferson County, Alabama in Map Book 
148, Page 17; thence run North 00 degrees 42 minutes 30 seconds west 
along the west line of said Subdivision for a distance of 539.82 feet to a 
found capped rebar; thence leaving said subdivision run South 89 Degrees 
42 Minutes 11 Seconds East for a distance of 170.17 feet to a found 1” 
crimped pipe marking the Southwest corner of the Weavers Addition to 
Jacobs Road Subdivision as recorded in Map Book 188, Page 91; thence 
run South 89 degrees 01 Seconds 06 minutes east for a distance of 158.30 
feet to a found pk nail; thence run South 88 degrees 07 minutes 27 seconds 
east for a distance of 5.67 feet to a set capped rebar stamped CA-560LS; 
thence run South 01 degrees 18 minutes 49 Seconds east for a distance of 
2.07 feet to a found ½” rebar; thence run North 73 degrees 04 minutes 29 
seconds east for a distance of 4.15 feet to a point; thence run South 00 
degrees 44 minutes 36 seconds east for a distance of 539.12 feet to the 
Point of Beginning.  Said parcel containing 182,815 square feet or 4.20 
acres more or less. 

 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 10th day of August, 2015. 

 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2594 
Page 3 

 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2594 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 10th day of August, 2015, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 



Ordinancce Number 259
Page

 

94 
e 4 

 



Annexation Committee Petition Review

Property: 2330 Jacobs Road

Owners: Anna SteeleProperties LLC (Jordy Henson developer)

Date: $-Q-V^

1. The property incjuestibn is contiguous to thecity limits.
Yes tJ*—No Comments:

2. The land useofihe^5etitioned property iscompatible with land use in the area.
Yes L^-^^^ No Comments:

3. The property being petitioned is noted in the September 2006 Annexation Policy
Task Force Rcjpertfas an area of interest to the city for annexation.
Yes l*^ No Comments

4. Streets and drainage structures are in substantial compliance with city regulations
and building^pdel;, and in good condition at the time of the annexation.
Yes ^^ No Comments

5. Individual household has a Jefferson or Shelby CountyTax Assessor minimum
market value of . Meetspity criteria: Yes No
Comment: f\J/^i

6. This street has fewer than 100%of the individual properties within the limits of
the city .

Yes No hi A
Number of total homes Number in city l\f / ST

7. Fire dues pursuant to Act #604 of the State of Alabama, and any other
assessments on the property shall be theresponsibility of the property owner, and
their payment proven to the city.
Agreed to by petitioner: Yes ^'__ No Comment_



Property: ^Q ^^O ~^\Ac^ip^ £-4'

8. A non-refundable administrative fee of $100 has been paid to the city.
Furthermore, voluntary contributions, includingan application fee, of
$ will be paid to offset costs associated with the annexation.
Yes No Comment

9. Properly isfree-andclearof hazardous waste, debris and materials.
Yes L/^ No Comment

10. Are there any concerns frpm city departments?
Yes No \S* Comments:

. Information on children: Number in family ; Plan tp enroll in VII
schools Yes No Comments:

3lan to ear

0%Comments: LjzlA. ^~~^ && ^&4S&//$Jtyd

Qpdfge Pierce
Chairman














	2015_0824CC_A
	2015_0810CC_M
	Resolution 4741
	Ordinance 2583
	Ordinance 2582
	Ordinance 2585
	Ordinance 2584
	Ordinance 2586
	Resolution 4744
	Resolution 4745
	Resolution 4751
	Resolution 4746
	Resolution 4752
	Ordinance 2587
	Resolution 4747
	Ordinance 2588
	Resolution 4748
	Ordinance 2589
	Resolution 4749
	Ordinance 2590
	Resolution 4750
	Ordinance 2591
	Ordinance 2592
	Ordinance 2593
	Ordinance 2594



